
Nursing Services (Annual Contract) 
Number: RFP 20-18 
Addendum # 1 
 
The information contained in this document shall become an official part of the original document and shall be 
acknowledged as noted on the Proposal Certification Form (Form 2) of solicitation document in the space 
provided.  Failure to acknowledge receipt of an addendum may result in a status of non-responsive.  Firms are 
encouraged to review the contents of this document and to respond accordingly. 
 
Addendum No. 1 is issued to answer questions submitted. 
 

Question: Answer: 

1. Is there an existing contract?  If so, who is the 
current contractor? 

Nursing Services for Medically Fragile Students: 
Delta-T Group, Inc. 
Pediatric Services of America, Inc. dba PSA Healthcare 
 
Nursing Services: 
Suwannee Medical Personnel 

2. Is there historical data on the usage by hours?  If 
yes, what is the usage for the last school year? 

Delta-T Group, Inc.   # of hours billed____0____ 
PSA Healthcare  # of hours billed___3,578_____ 
Suwannee Medical Personnel  # of hours billed_1,423__ 
 

3. Can the District please clarify how needs for FTE 
vendor supplied contractors will be disseminated to 
awardees post award? 

The contracted nurse for medically fragile students would 
be designated through the student’s IEP as supplemental 
aids and services and/or related services. School based 
nursing would be disseminated based on District needs.  

4. How may vendors does the District expect to award a 
contract to for the services requested in this 
solicitation?  

It is the District’s intent to enter into a contract with 
multiple vendors who are fully qualified to provide the 
services requested. 

5. Can the District please provide incumbent 
information and current bill rates for contracts in 
place for similar services? 

Nursing Services for Medically Fragile Students: 
Delta-T Group, Inc. 
LPN - $34.00/hr straight time; $51.00/hr overtime 
RN - $39.50/hr straight time; $59.25/hr overtime 
Minimum Shift Requirement – None 
 
Pediatric Services of America, Inc. dba PSA Healthcare 
LPN - $35.00/hr straight time; $35.00/hr overtime 
RN - $40.00/hr straight time; $40.00/hr overtime 
Minimum Shift Requirement – None 
 
Nursing Services: 
Suwannee Medical Personnel 
LPN - $30.00/hr (overtime at 1 ½ ) 
RN - $45.00/hr (overtime at 1 ½) 
Minimum shift requirement:  4 hours 

6. Can the District please describe the supplies and 
materials that contracted providers will have access 
to at the District?  (wifi, computer access, testing 
materials, office supplies, etc.)? 

Access to materials would be determined based on 
supplies needed to meet the needs of the student. 

7. What travel between schools is expected for these 
providers? 

If travel is required, it would entail riding the bus with the 
student. 

8. Will the District review other SPED services if 
submitted with the vendor proposal? 

Yes 

9. What has been the skill assessment practices of the 
schools for nurses working with G-Tubes, Trachs, 
Vents, and other special needs? 

The vendor is responsible for competency testing. 

10. Would the nurse ride the bus with the student? Yes, if deemed necessary in the student’s IEP. 
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11. What are the traditional schedules that are utilized for 
one on one school nurses?  Assuming they ride the 
bus with the student would their shift begin once they 
meet the patient at their home? 

Yes 

12. What was the spend for this program for this 
previous year? 

Delta-T Group, Inc.   $____0________ 
PSA Healthcare  $_131,202.00_____ 
Suwannee Medical Personnel  $____42,757.00______ 
 

13. What is the projected spend or amount of full-time 
nurses needed for this upcoming school year? 

We currently utilize 2 full time 1:1 nurses for medically 
fragile students. 
Three full time school based nurses would be needed 
ranging from 500-1500 hours. 

14. Pg. 13, Section 2.0 – Background Information:  This 
section states that the intent of this contract is to 
provide nursing services to medically fragile students 
and establish hourly rates for LPNs and RNs to 
provide, “on short notice, fill in, intermittent, 
temporary or substitute nurse staffing services, as 
required, to cover full-time Board nursing staff 
absences or vacancies. 
a. Is this contract going to be primarily for fill-in, 

intermittent staffing to cover staff absences or 
vacancies? 

b. Please provide an estimate on the projected 
number of nurses (LPNs and RNs) that may be 
needed and total number of hours for each. 

a. The Board’s primary purpose and intent of this 
solicitation is to establish annual contracts with firms 
that are able to provide nursing services to medically 
fragile student(s) who wish to regularly attend school.  
The Board would also like to establish annual 
contracts with firms you can provide LPNs and RNs, 
on short notice, to cover full-time Board nursing staff 
absences and vacancies. 
 

b. Current estimate is two for medically fragile; however, 
this may change at any time if a student enrolls in our 
District with needs requiring a nurse. Three are 
projected for school based nursing. 

15. Page 13 – Section 3.0 Scope of Services Requested 
by this RFP, Item 3.4 
a. Is a 7-panel drug screen acceptable? 
b. Are the background criminal checks to be 

performed through Cogent? 

a. a.  Yes 
b.  

b. District to complete 

16. Page 15 – Scope of Services for Nursing Services for 
Medically Fragile Students, paragraph 2 states that 
nurses must receive orientation of the medical 
requirements of medically fragile student and school 
procedures on site. 
a. Please provide the time frame of the orientation 

(number of hour or days of training). 

a. See answer to question 9. 

17. Who are the current contract vendors for this 
contract? 

See answer to question 1. 

18. What are the billing rates for the current contract 
vendors? 

See answer to question 5. 

19. Can invoices be submitted weekly? Yes, however monthly is preferred. 

20. What are the payment terms for this contract?  Net 
30? 

The District’s payment terms are Net 40. 

21. What is the expected amount of FTE contract, 
vendor supplied RN’s and LPN’s needed during the 
2019/20 SY? 

2 would be expected for medically fragile and 3 for school 
-based nursing. 
May 15, 2020 

22. Can the District please provide the total amount of 
FTE contract, vendor supplied RN’s and LPN’s 
utilized during the 2018/19 SY? 

10 

23. Can the District please provide the total amount 
billing, broken down by vendor and classification, for 
all vendor supplied RN’s and LPN’s utilized during 

Suwannee Medical Personnel  $____42,757.00_______ 
PSA Healthcare  $_______131,202.00________ 
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the 2018/19 SY? 

24. How many students are on the caseload? 1 for medically fragile 
School based nursing service caseloads are dependent 
on school site. On average caseloads are 75-100 per 
day. 

25. Who are the current vendors and what are their 
rates? 

See answer to question 5. 

26. Why is this contract going out for bid? All annual extensions on our current contracts have been 
exercised.  The District is solicitating for the requested 
services in order to enter into contract(s) on an annual 
basis with options to extend those contracts for two (2) 
additional one-year periods. 

27. Do you anticipate awarding multiple vendors? See answer to question 4. 

28. How many nurses will you need for this contract? 2 for medically fragile and 3 for school-based nursing 

29. Are you currently working with any agencies 
providing Nursing Services to your District? 

See answer to question 5. 

30. Who are your current Nursing vendors and what 
prices do they charge? 

See answer to question 5. 

31. Have these vendors been able to meet all of your 
Nursing needs? 

Yes 

32. How many nurses (FTE) did each vendor provide to 
your District for the current 2018/2019 school year? 

See answer to question 22. 

33. How many contract nurses (FTE) do you anticipate 
needing for the upcoming 2019/2020 school year? 

5 

34. On page 13, #3.0, the term “Service Provider” is 
used frequently.  Is “Service Provider” intended to 
mean the individual nurse providing the service, or 
the company for whom the individual nurse is 
employed? 

Service Provider refers to the company contracted to 
provide services. 

35. On page 16, under Minimum Qualifications, bullet 
point #2 states that “Offeror must be licensed by the 
State of Georgia Board of Nursing”.  Is offeror 
intended to mean the individual nurse providing the 
service, or the company for whom the individual 
nurse is employed? 

Yes 

36. Do you require that nurse resumes and/or licensure 
be submitted with the proposal? 

No 

37. How many hours are in a typical school day (i.e. how 
many hours are nurses allowed to be on-site and 
billing)? 

8 hours paid, 30 minutes lunch 

38. How many work days are they assigned for the 
school year? 

180 days for medically fragile, or the number of school 
days that students are required to attend. 
178 days for school based nursing. 

39. What is the average caseload for nurses in your 
District, if not a 1-on-1 provider? 

See answer to question 24. 

40. Will assigned nurses have access to nursing 
materials, supplies, and equipment provided by your 
schools? 

Yes 

41. Will assigned nurses have access to 
computers/laptops and printers by your schools? 

Long term sub- Yes 

42. Is the contracting agency able to bill for both direct 
and indirect treatment time (paperwork, meeting, 
teacher consultations, etc.)? 
 

Yes for services provided for medically fragile students. 
No for school-based nursing services. 
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43. Do you require vendors to guarantee the provision of 
nursing services or is it understood that we will begin 
recruiting on a best effort basis? 

No 

44. Does your historical use of contract nurses indicate 
that they typically remain employed throughout the 
school year, or that they are replaced during the 
school year if the District is able to locate a direct 
hire? 

A direct hire would replace a contract nurse. 

45. If required, will our nurses bill Medicaid on behalf of 
SCCPSS and Medicaid will pay SCCPSS or does our 
company bill Medicaid directly and receive payment 
from Medicaid directly? 

SCCPSS will bill Medicaid. 

46. Why is the contract out for bid?  Is it required to be 
put out for bid? 

See answer to question 26. 

47. Who are your current incumbent vendors for these 
services? 

See answer to question 1. 

48. Are you satisfied with your current vendors? Yes 

49. Are your needs being met? Yes 

50. Can you provide last year’s usage for these services 
in either number of hours filled and/or total cost in 
dollar amount used for these services broken down 
by the positions solicited in this IFB? 

See answers to questions 2, 5, & 22. 

51. What are your current hourly bill rates by 
classification? 

See answer to question 5. 

52. Are we able to take exceptions and propose 
language to any of the terms and/or requirements? 

All requests for material substitutions needed to be 
addressed in writing and submitted by 9/10/2019. 

53. Would you be interested in receiving information 
about our vendor management program, as we could 
manage all agency usage for the district? 

Yes 

54. Is there room for any negotiation on the insurance 
terms, as our broker noticed a few items that may be 
an issue on our end to comply with? 

No 

55. What was the annual spend in the past fiscal year? See answer to question 12. 

56. Are there any current incumbent vendor(s) on the 
contract?  If so, who are they? 

See answer to question 1. 

57. What is the projected start date of the contract? December 1, 2019. 

58. How many new Private Duty cases do you get a 
school year? 

Undetermined 

 
 
***ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED*** 
 
End of Addendum #1 to RFP 20-18 Nursing Services (Annual Contract) 

 


